1953

Melba Wilcox v. District Court of Salt Lake County et al : Brief of Plaintiff

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts in this case are not in dispute. They are: The defendant, Edna Abbott Wilcox, (plaintiff below) obtained a decree of divorce from Don E. Wilcox in 1928 in an action

which she filed in the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah.

The divorce decree provided, among other things, that Don E. Wilcox pay to Edna Abbott Wilcox the sum of \$30.00 per month for the support of herself and a minor child.

No further proceedings were had in this action until on or about the 21st day of September, 1953, when the defendant, Edna Abbott Wilcox filed in said divorce action her "Affidavit for Order" (Exhibit A attached to plaintiff's Complaint). In said affidavit she alleged that Don E. Wilcox had made no payments to her since June, 1930, and that there was due to her from the said Don E. Wilcox from June, 1930 to June, 1949, the sum of \$6,840.00, plus interest in the sum of \$7,113.60, or a total of \$13,953.60.

She then states that Don E. Wilcox died May 31, 1953, a resident of the County of San Mateo, California, and the plaintiff herein (defendant below) Melba Wilcox, is the duly appointed, present acting executrix of his estate under Probate No. 20202 in the Superior Court of the State of California in and for the County of San Mateo; that there is due and owing from the estate of the deceased \$13,953.60 to herself as aforesaid.

She then prayed for an order to show cause to be issued requiring Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, to show why judgment should not be rendered against Melba Wilcox, executrix and the estate of Don E. Wilcox, aforesaid, in the sum of \$13,953.60.

On or about September 21, 1953, the Honorable Clarence E. Baker, one of the judges of the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, entered an order that "Melba Wilcox, executrix in the matter of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, be and she hereby is ordered and required to appear before this court (the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah) on the 6th day of October, 1953, at 10:00 o'clock, A. M., then and there to show cause why judgment should not be entered against the estate aforesaid in the sum of \$13,953.60 and for such other orders as may be proper in the premises" (Exhibit B attached to plaintiff's Complaint).

On or about September 23, 1953, a copy of the affidavit for order and the order to show cause were served on plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, as executrix of the estate of D. E. Wilcox, deceased in San Mateo County, California (Exhibit C attached to plaintiff's Complaint).

Thereafter on or about September 29, 1953, plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, filed a motion with the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, to quash the service of the order to show cause on the grounds (a) that the said Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, was not and is not now subject to process within the jurisdiction of the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, and (b) that the said Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, has not been properly served with process in this action as shown by the files and rec-

ords heretofore filed in this matter (Exhibit D attached to plaintiff's Complaint).

Said motion was set for hearing on October 6, 1953, and the motion argued to the court. Whereupon, the defendant, the Honorable Joseph G. Jeppson, one of the judges of the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, denied said motion and ordered that the order to show cause served on the plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, be heard at the hour of 10:30 o'clock, A. M., October 15, 1953, and ordered further that the plaintiff Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, be substituted as party defendant for the defendant Don E. Wilcox, in the action entitled, "Edna Abbott Wilcox vs. Don E. Wilcox" (Exhibit E attached to plaintiff's Complaint).

On October 15, 1953, the plaintiff Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, moved the court to set aside its previous order denying her motion to quash the service of the order to show cause and after argument by counsel, the defendant, the Honorable Joseph G. Jeppson, took the matter under advisement (Exhibit F attached to plaintiff's Complaint).

On or about October 16, 1953, the defendant, the Honorable Joseph G. Jeppson, entered an order denying the motion of plaintiff to set aside his previous order denying plaintiff's motion to quash the service of the order to show cause and further ordered that the matter proceed to a hearing (Exhibit 2 attached to defendants' answer).

The plaintiff alleges and it is not in dispute that a decree was entered in said divorce action entitled "Edna

Abbott Wilcox vs. Don E. Wilcox," and that the said Don E. Wilcox was ordered to pay \$30.00 per month for the support of Edna Abbott Wilcox and a minor child; that Don E. Wilcox died May 31, 1953; that at the time of his death he was a resident of San Mateo County, State of California, and that plaintiff is the duly appointed, acting and qualified executrix of his estate under Probate No. 20202, in the Superior Court of the State of California in and for the County of San Mateo.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

THE RULING OF THE DEFENDANT, THE HONORABLE JOSEPH G. JEPSON, IN DENYING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO QUASH THE SERVICE OF THE ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE IS CONTRARY TO LAW FOR THE REASON THAT THE COURT BELOW LACKS JURISDICTION OVER THE PERSON OF THE PLAINTIFF, MELBA WILCOX, EXECUTRIX OF THE ESTATE OF DON E. WILCOX, DECEASED.

(a) Personal service of process on the plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, was necessary to obtain jurisdiction over her to enter a judgment against her as executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, or against his estate.

(b) An action upon a claim against the estate of a decedent cannot be maintained against the executrix of his estate in a state other than the state of her appointment.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE RULING OF THE DEFENDANT, THE HONORABLE JOSEPH G. JEPSON, IN DENYING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO QUASH THE SERVICE OF THE ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE IS CONTRARY TO LAW FOR THE REASON THAT THE COURT BELOW LACKS JURISDICTION OVER THE PERSON OF THE PLAINTIFF, MELBA WILCOX, EXECUTRIX OF THE ESTATE OF DON E. WILCOX, DECEASED.

(a) Personal service of process on the plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, was necessary to obtain jurisdiction over her to enter a judgment against her as executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, or against his estate.

Regardless of the designation or form given by defendant, Edna Abbott Wilcox to her pleading, stripped to its essential elements, it is an action to recover a judgment against Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E.

Wilcox, deceased, and/or against his estate on a claim against the deceased for past due and unpaid installments of alimony and support money.

It is an elementary principle of law that to recover a judgment in such an action personal service of process was necessary to obtain jurisdiction over the person of plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased. *Pennoyer v. Neff*, 95 U. S. 714, 25 L. Ed. 565.

No personal service of process in the State of Utah was made on plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, and, therefore, the court below did not have jurisdiction over her person.

(b) An action upon a claim against the estate of a decedent cannot be maintained against the executrix of his estate in a state other than the state of her appointment.

The *Restatement of the Law of Conflict of Laws*, page 617, Section 512, states, "No action can be maintained against any administrator outside the state of his appointment upon a claim against the estate of the decedent". See also, to the same effect, 77 *A. L. R.*, page 251; 34 *C. J. S.*, page 1265, Section 1013, 21 *Am. Jur.*, page 929, Section 985.
15 *T. R. A. (M. S.)* 632

The undisputed facts in this case show that Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, was appointed by the Superior Court of the State of California in and for the County of San Mateo and, therefore, the court below did not have and cannot acquire jurisdiction over plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased.

CONCLUSION

This being purely and simply an action at law to recover a judgment, on a claim against the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, against the plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased, who was appointed by the Superior Court of the State of California in and for the County of San Mateo the court below lacks jurisdiction over the person of the plaintiff, Melba Wilcox, executrix of the estate of Don E. Wilcox, deceased.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays that the alternative writ be made permanent.