1953

Melba Wilcox v. District Court of Salt Lake County et al : Brief of Defendants

Utah Supreme Court

This is not the commencement of an action, it is proceedings subsequent to jurisdiction over the subject matter, matrimonial res, and persons.

This is the same question as where process has issued and parties have submitted to the jurisdiction, the issues drawn and then defendant has moved out of the jurisdiction. Now, must plaintiff again serve defendant with process, or is service of a notice of hearing all that is necessary?

When an order to show cause is issued after jurisdiction of the person is acquired Rule 65 A (b) requires only notice to the party of the hearing.

Rule 5 B (1) prescribes notice to be sufficient merely by mailing or serving the same upon a party or his attorney. The rule also gives the court discretion to prescribe notice by service upon a party.

In the case at bar the court exercised discretion and ordered that service of a copy of the order on executrix would be sufficient. This matter is res adjudicata. The Rule gives the court DISCRETION to do this. Can the plaintiff under this extraordinary writ seek to restrain the trial court from acting on a discretionary matter? The maxim of the law that lower courts will not be subjected to action on extraordinary writs where the lower court is in exercise of a discretionary function has been ignored by plaintiff.

Plaintiff by appearing admits notice was given in the trial court. Plaintiff also conceded in the trial court that had defendant Wilcox survived, and had he been served with notice, though outside the state, he would be bound by proceedings had pursuant to notice in the case at bar. Plaintiff having conceded this counsel shall not burden the court with authorities.

Plaintiff claims that death of Wilcox changes the situation. The authorities and statutes do not sustain such position. Plaintiff has cited no authority which requires the commencement anew of an action by service of process where the defendant dies. None can be found and the statutes and authorities do not so hold.

75-11-5 UCA, 1953 permits the maintenance of actions against decedents the same as they might be maintained against the testate. Moreover, rule 25 (a) (1) provides:

“If a party dies and the claim is not thereby extinguished, the court upon application made within two years after the death, shall order substitution of the proper parties. The motion for substitution may be made by * * * any party.”

The legislature having spoken, it follows that the appointment of an executrix and the substitution with notice has supplied the only item necessary to provide continuing jurisdiction over the personal representative, whether the defendant Wilcox was alive or dead. Such application was made within two years after death.

30-3-5 UCA, 1953 with respect to divorce actions has been construed to give the court continuing jurisdiction over the persons upon death and to extend beyond the person and include the personal representative upon death of defendant and also the subject matter and the properties of the defendant or his estate, and to even permit the party plaintiff to pursue in a divorce action a judgment against the substituted administrator, and to determine on an order to show cause not only the amount of the judgment but to also require payment directly from the estate to a plaintiff in a divorce action and foreclosure of a lien. See:

Murphy v. Moyle, 53 P. 1010, 17 U. 113.

Please also note in the above case that Section 2606 upon which the court at 17 Utah, page 120 claims authority to interfere in the administration of the estate is precisely the same as our section 30-3-5, U.C.A., 1953.

The fiction of custodia legis extended to administrators has no application where the parties have already submitted their matrimonial res and themselves to the jurisdiction of the court or voluntarily vest the court with jurisdiction over themselves and such of their property as the court may determine necessary for child support. The court's attention is invited to section 30-3-5, U.C.A. 1953, wherein the court is expressly given jurisdiction of the property of the parties and a continuing jurisdiction thereof. *Murphy v. Moyle*, supra, is the same as the case at bar in that it was a divorce action with substitution of the administrator and an order to show cause. Moreover, the authorities in other jurisdictions sustain the position taken in the *Murphy v. Moyle* case: See 2 Bancrofts Probate Practice, 2nd Edition, page 556, permitting the substitution in pending action of the decedent's representative.

21 CJS 113-114.

"A nonresident over whose person jurisdiction has been acquired is in court for every purpose connected with the suit, and is charged with notice of any action the court may take pending the same; and having acquired jurisdiction, the court will retain it for the purpose of administering justice to resident citizens, and will not send them to foreign jurisdictions to seek redress."

Here defendant seeks to send plaintiff in the court below to California.

21 CJS 144.

“So, where jurisdiction of the person or of the res has once attached, it is not defeated by a removal of the person or the res beyond the jurisdiction of the court.”

The matrimonial res and res necessary for support of the minor child attached by consent in the case at bar.

21 CJS 146.

“The court does not necessarily lose jurisdiction by the death of some of the petitioners, and a statute may authorize continuation of the action, as by the substitution of a representative of the decedent.”

27 CJS 652.

“Where a nonresident defendant appears and answers and all other elements of jurisdiction are present in general the court has jurisdiction for all purposes.”

27 CJS 1225.

“Where a divorce decree becomes absolute, the court nevertheless retains jurisdiction of the subject matter so far as to compel compliance with the decree as to the maintenance and support of minor children.”

27 CJS 1239.

“The decree may also be amended to give the provisions for the child’s maintenance the effect of a lien on the deceased father’s estate, with priority over the right of the widow and heirs.”

We have not asked for this, only determination of the sum due.

27 CJS 1248.

"Time of making application. The jurisdiction of the court being continuous, statutes limiting the time within which judgments may be modified have no application to the modification of divorce decrees awarding a sum for the support of minor children."

West vs. West, 217 N.W. 925.

"So solicitous is the law for the welfare of the child that the decree for such support survives the death of the father and may be amended to give the provision for the child's maintenance the effect of a lien upon the estate with priority over rights of the widow and heirs."

15 ALR 629.

"In *White vs. White* (1903) 65 N.J. Eq. 741, 55 Atl. 739, it is held that where a court has acquired jurisdiction over a defendant in divorce proceedings it retains jurisdiction for the purpose of subsequent proceedings to alter the amount paid to plaintiff for the maintenance of the children, in accordance with the terms of the decree providing for such alteration; and that the court may use its *discretion* in prescribing the measures necessary to *notify* the defendant of such proceedings. And where personal service is prescribed by the court, it is *immaterial* that it is *served without the state*.

It is apparent that other courts recognize it is a discretionary matter with the court to prescribe notice.

What is plaintiff doing before this court on an extraordinary writ?

Let the writ be dismissed and the lower court directed to proceed to determination as prayed.

Respectfully Submitted,

E. L. SCHOENHALS,
Attorney for Defendants.